
 

Page 1 of 6 

 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, June 9, 2015 

 

Present: Chairman Bowles, Selectman Krieger, and Selectman Ives. 

Present for Board of permit:  Fire Chief Wright, Police Chief/Code Enforcement Officer 

Bob Fiske, Zoning Board member Ned Lizotte, and Planning Board member Stanley 

Prescott. 

 

 Chairman Bowles called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

 

I. Selectman Krieger moved to approve the Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes of Tuesday, June 

2, 2015 as written.  Seconded by Selectman Ives.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 

 

II. Chairman Bowles opened Board of Permit. 

a. Mr. Fiske provided the Board with a copy of the July schedule of events for NHMS.  

The Board discussed having sent a letter to the Track in the past, indicating that the 

live band performances must end at 10:00 PM. The schedule provided indicates 11:00 

PM ending for band performances on Thursday, Friday and Saturday evenings and 

10:00 PM on Sunday.  Mr. Fiske stated that he is concerned for the neighbors.  The 

Board agreed a letter would be sent to the Track.  Selectman Krieger stated that he 

felt the last line of the letter referencing handling the policing of the events should be 

addressed with NHMS; the Police Chief should be the one to set the police presence.   

b. Mr. Fiske presented the Board with the letter of intent for the motorcycle demo ride 

event this year during motorcycle week.  It was stated that the route would be NH 

Route 106, right on to Loudon Ridge Road to Lower Ridge Road back on to NH 

Route 106 and back to the track property.  Mr. Fiske indicated that the event would be 

from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM on June 18-20, 2015.  Chairman Bowles stated he has had 

people inquire if the route would be utilizing Lower Ridge Road again.  Mr. Fiske 

stated that they had an officer on the Ridge as much as possible last year keeping an 

eye on the riders.  He stated that the organization is responsible for having their own 

spotters.  Chairman Bowles stated that there hadn’t been any major catastrophes in 

the past.  Mr. Fiske stated that was correct.  It was stated, there are some neighbors 

that are not happy with this event.  It was agreed that this was the safest route for this 

event.   

c. Mr. Fiske stated that the Cystic Fibrosis Ride would be this weekend, June 12 – 14.  

He stated that the NH Fish and Game license is all set.  Mr. Fiske discussed the Class 

VI Road near Sanborn Road and the gate that is now there.  There was discussion 

regarding gates and bars and what the RSA states.  Mr. Fiske will research the RSA 

regarding gates and bars and will let the Board know his findings.   

d. Mr. Fiske advised the Board that he had been to court today regarding Jack Shaver 

and his trash hauling and recycling business not following the requirements of a 

hauler.  He said that this had been a court issue for the past three years and Mr. 

Shaver is not following any of the restrictions set forth.  Mr. Fiske asked if the Board 

would be in agreement with requiring Mr. Shaver to go back to the Planning Board 

for review of his business approval.  Mr. Prescott said Mr. Fiske could have Mr. 

Shaver come before the Planning Board but that he thought it was a code enforcement 



 

Page 2 of 6 

 

issue. He stated that if Mr. Shaver was permitted for “A and B” but was doing “A, B, 

and C”, Mr. Fiske should issue a cease and desist to Mr. Shaver and the Board would 

look into this issue.  

 

Chairman Bowles closed the Board of Permit.   

 

III. The Board met with Police Chief, Code Enforcement Officer Bob Fiske. 

a. Mr. Fiske advised the Board that the Loudon Police Association gave out three 

 Scholarships at the MV Senior Awards night on Monday, June 8, 2015. 

b. Mr. Fiske stated that Mrs. Masterson of Loudon Elementary School had sent a nice 

Email regarding the LPD and Dispatcher Janice Morin’s social media announcements 

during the Thanksgiving 2014 storm.   

 

IV. The Board met with Police Chief, Code Enforcement Officer Bob Fiske, and part-time 

Code Enforcement Secretary Donna White. 

Mr. Fiske stated that Mrs. White and Ms. Morin discussed adjusting the hours that Mrs. 

White would be working in the Code Enforcement Office to Monday 12:00 PM to 4:00 

PM, Tuesday 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM, and Thursday 12:00 PM to 4:00 PM.  Mrs. White 

stated that originally, Ms. Morin wanted coverage in the Code Enforcement Office from 

9:00 AM to 3:00 PM on Monday, Tuesday, and Thursday, however those hours would 

take too much time out of Mrs. White’s hours in the Planning/Zoning Office.  Mrs. White 

said that Planning Board Chairman Tom Dow stated that the construction business is 

starting to pick up and he feels that not only will the Planning/Zoning Office get busier 

but that the Code Enforcement Office will as well.  Mrs. White went on to say that due to 

deadlines within her Planning /Zoning Office, she has agreed to more hours on Tuesday 

at Code Enforcement because she has deadlines for Planning/Zoning on Wednesday’s 

and the current hours have already created an issue for the deadline.  Mrs. White went on 

to say that, Mr. Dow also indicated that he would like to see that if the hours are changed, 

that they become set hours and do not keep changing as it will add to the confusion.  Mrs. 

White indicated that the time that she is at the Code Enforcement Office she finds that 

she is doing more police related duties than she is doing code enforcement.  She said that 

while she is ok with doing what needs to be done, she wasn’t sure if the whole plan 

needed to be revisited regarding the hours needed for code enforcement duties again.  

Selectman Krieger asked Mrs. White if she was comfortable with handling the duties on 

the Police Department side.  Mrs. White stated that she has not learned the police side 

and currently is not comfortable with the police related duties of that office.  Selectman 

Krieger asked Mr. Fiske if the employees previously in the position Mrs. White is 

currently in helped with both the code enforcement and police side.  Mr. Fiske stated that 

previous employees did help with both sides on occasion.    Selectman Ives stated that he 

had an issue with the fact that Mrs. White was placed over in the Code Enforcement 

Office, not the Police Department.  Mrs. White stated that she had no problem with 

helping with the administrative duties of the Police Department but not comfortable with 

getting more involved in police duties.  Mr. Fiske stated that Mrs. White is very efficient 

with copying, filing, etc., and that there is a lot of down time in the Code Enforcement 

Office.  He said that she is asked to help with both offices as needed.  Mr. Fiske stated 

that with the race coming up and the three weeks of vacation time available for the 



 

Page 3 of 6 

 

fulltime position, the part-time secretary has helped with covering the police side duties 

in the past.  Selectman Krieger stated that Mrs. White has always been willing to jump in 

where needed to help.  Selectman Ives stated that he did not have a problem with the new 

hours as long as Planning/Zoning Offices are not having a problem with these new hours.  

He went on to say as long as Mrs. White’s duties are copying, filing, etc. and she is 

comfortable with the job, he is ok with her helping out with the police office duties as 

long as the position does not become more about the police side than the code side.  Mrs. 

White stated that she was not comfortable answering the police phone but had no 

problem with helping with the non-emergency duties.  Mr. Fiske stated that any help Mrs. 

White gives in the police side is a great help.  Selectman Krieger said the worst thing the 

Board could do would be to ask Mrs. White to do the police duties if she were not 

comfortable doing it and asked if having Mrs. White in the position was working out.  

Mr. Fiske stated that he and Ms. Morin were agreeable to having Mrs. White in the 

position.  Selectman Krieger stated his concern about the possibility of the 

Planning/Zoning offices getting busier and Mrs. White having to cut back on code/police 

hours.  He said that maybe it would make sense to train someone else for that position if 

there’s a chance Mrs. White might have to cut back on those hours in the future.  Mrs. 

White said that she wasn’t trying to talk herself out of a job but that she was wondering if 

she was the right fit for the position.  Selectman Krieger said that Mrs. Theriault is 

helping the Fire Chief one day per week, and understands that there’s enough work to 

keep her busy more than one day per week.  He said that the Highway Department has an 

increase in paperwork, and he doesn’t feel there is an issue with a lack of work available 

to keep Mrs. White on fulltime.  He went on to say that maybe people are not in the right 

spot currently.  Alicia Kingsbury was acknowledged from the audience.  She asked if it 

were decided that the second position for police/code duties was not needed.  Selectman 

Krieger said the Board is trying to utilize personnel to keep from laying anyone off.  

Chairman Bowles said originally, that position was presented as a code enforcement 

position and now we are seeing the need for the police side.  Selectman Ives stated that 

the current plan is for Mrs. White to start working the agreed upon hours, and in 6 

months if there are changes that need to be addressed, then the Board will review the 

situation at that time.  He stated that he would rather see the utilization of current 

employees than to create a new position to help keep the burden off the taxpayers.  It was 

agreed that the new hours would be effective starting on Monday, June 15, 2015.  

Chairman Bowles stated if anything needed to change, the Board would need to be 

notified.  

 

V. The Board met with Fire Chief Wright. 

a. Chief Wright advised the Board that the rooms at Station 1 with winter flooding 

damage have been 95 % repaired and they will be moving the offices back in a day or 

two.  He stated that Kim Bean has donated all of the work at a cost of $1,450.00.   

b. Chief Wright thanked the Road Agent and Highway Crew for the installation of the 

Knox-Box at the Transfer Station. 

c. Chief Wright advised the Board of the special operator driver training for the new 

Arial Truck with the Deputy Chief of Franklin and members of the Franklin Fire 

Department.  Selectman Ives said he heard the training was well attended.  Chief 

Wright discussed some of the training events that took place. 



 

Page 4 of 6 

 

d. Chief Wright advised the Board that all but one of the sixteen dry hydrants are now 

set with the 6” fitting needed for connection to the trucks.  He said the one dry 

hydrant not updated is on Oak Hill Road and this one will be done next.  Selectman 

Ives asked if cisterns were included in this figure.  Chief Wright stated that it did not 

include the seven cisterns in Loudon.   

e. Chief Wright stated that if the Road Agent wanted the dump body off the 1-ton truck, 

now would be a good time to get it.   

     

VI. Selectman Krieger moved to go into nonpublic session per RSA 91-A: 3, II (a) at 6:52 

PM.; seconded by Selectman Ives.  Roll call vote: Ives – yes; Krieger – yes; Bowles – 

yes.  All in favor.  Motion carries.  Selectman Ives moved to come out of non-public 

session at 7:10 PM.; seconded by Selectman Krieger.  Roll call vote: Ives – yes; Krieger 

– yes; Bowles – yes All in favor.  Motion carries.  Selectman Ives made a motion to seal 

the minutes for five years because it is determined that divulgence of this information 

likely would affect adversely the reputation of any person other than a member of this 

board.  Seconded by Selectman Krieger.  All in favor.  Roll call vote: Ives – yes; Krieger 

– yes; Bowles – yes.  Motion carries.   

 

VII. The Board met with Ken Roketenetz of Presidential Pines Co-Op regarding the removal 

of the mobile home units in their park.  Mr. Roketenetz will forward some additional 

information via email to the Selectmen’s Office regarding other quotes he has received.  

The Board discussed possibly moving the outbuilding at one of the town owned mobile 

homes and bringing it to the Transfer Station for storing batteries.  Discussion began 

regarding obtaining additional information and moving forward.  The Board will take this 

under advisement until they receive the additional information to review.  Selectman 

Krieger inquired about the reducing or stopping the monthly lot rent being charged.  Mr. 

Roketenetz will bring up this request at the next Co-op meeting.  

 

VIII. The Board began their review of weekly correspondence. 

a. The Board received a revised contract with Higgins for the photo ID machine in the 

amount of $250.00 for the year.  Selectman Krieger moved to enter into the contract 

with Higgins on proposal #P104881 in the amount of $275.00 for the maintenance of 

the ID printer.  Seconded by Selectman Ives.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 

b. The Board received a letter (forward from Chief Wright) from NH DOT inquiring if 

Loudon would be doing any projects in the area of Pittsfield Road that might affect 

DOT’s paving schedule.   The Board will check with Road Agent Lance Houle to be 

sure there are no projects in this area. 

c. The Board received an estimate for lighting at the Transfer Station from Powerbuilt to 

put florescent lights in the storage area built last fall.  Selectman Krieger stated he 

would like to see more than one estimate for this project.  Chairman Bowles will have 

Steve Bennett obtain other quotes.   

d. The Board received the Merrimack Valley School District 2015-2016 assessment for 

Loudon for review.  Selectman Krieger stated that the payment would be $40,000.00 



 

Page 5 of 6 

 

more per month for Loudon’s portion.  Chairman Bowles stated the full monthly 

assessment amount is $722,040.64. 

e. The Board received information from Upton & Hatfield regarding Fairpoint Tax 

Abatement Representation for review and comment.  The Board will contact Attorney 

Mayer for input prior to making any decisions.  

f. The Board received an estimate from Central NH Trailers for review and approval.  

Chairman Bowles stated this is for the mower that was approved at Town Meeting.  

Discussion began regarding the dimensions and space constraints. 

g. The Board received new driver certification information from the J. O. Cate Van for 

review.    

h. The Board received the ESMI Self-report for April and May 2015. 

i. The Board received the Agricultural Commission Minutes of May 7, 2015.   

j. The Board received a copy of the Comcast Connections newsletter. 

k. The Board received a copy of the 2015 Knowing the Territory.  

 

IX. The Board received the following reminders.  

a. Thursday, June 11
th

 at 1:15 PM is a TCP Meeting. 

b. Thursday, June 11
th

 at 4:00 PM; Propane Bids are due. 

c. Friday, June 12
th

; College Scholarship Applications are due. 

d. Saturday, June 13
th

 at 10:00 AM is the Merrimack Valley High School Graduation. 

. 

X. Selectman Ives asked if the Merrimack Valley School Board had indicated if they have 

chosen a candidate for the Loudon School Board representative.  Chairman Bowles said 

there were five people that notified the School Board that they were interested in the 

vacant position.  He said he thought that the School Board members were going to review 

the information at their next meeting.   

 

XI. A member of the audience advised the Board that the RSA relative to gates and bars is 

RSA 231:121-a and read the overview for those present. 

 

XII. Selectman Krieger congratulated all the Merrimack Valley High School Seniors 

graduating this weekend.  He stated he hoped that they all prosper in their future 

endeavors.  Chairman Bowles stated he hoped that they all stay safe. 

 

XIII. Selectman Ives thanked Jim McNeil and Selectman Krieger for presenting the Arthur E. 

McNeil and Raymond C. Cummings Memorial Scholarships at the MV Awards 

Ceremony.  Chairman Bowles agreed.  The Board thanked the Scholarship Committee 

Members for their efforts.  Roger Maxfield inquired about the amount of scholarships 

awarded.  It was stated that there were 16 MV students and 1 from Bishop Brady, 1 from 

Trinity Christian School, and 1 from Concord Christian School.  Selectman Ives indicated 

that the amount awarded was $63,500.00.   

 



 

Page 6 of 6 

 

XIV. Alicia Kingsbury was acknowledged from the audience regarding the closing date for the 

homes that were sold at auction.  The Board advised Ms. Kingsbury that the process is 

moving forward and they hope to have the closing as quickly as possible.   

 

XV. Selectman Krieger moved to adjourn at 7:42 PM. Seconded by Selectman Ives.  All in 

favor.  Motion carried.  

 

 

LOUDON BOARD OF SELECTMEN  

 

_________________________________  

Dustin J. Bowles, Chairman 

 

_________________________________  

Robert P. Krieger, Selectman 

 

_________________________________  

Steven R. Ives, Selectman  

 


